
P.T.O.

www.staffsmoorlands.gov.uk
Moorlands House, Stockwell Street, Leek, Staffordshire Moorlands, ST13 6HQ.  Tel:  0345 605 3010

            Simon W. Baker    B.Ed MBA MISPAL
        Chief Executive

AGENDA
for a

MEETING OF THE CABINET
Tuesday, 7 August 2018 at 2.00 pm in

 The Council Chamber - Moorlands House, Stockwell 
Street, Leek

Contact Officer: Linden Vernon Email: linden.vernon@staffsmoorlands.gov.uk 
or Tel: 01538 395613

Membership
Councillors:-

S. Ralphs MBE
A. Forrester
M. Bowen

T. Hall
E. Wain
D. Ogden
S. Scalise

Leader of the Council (Chair)
Environment (Deputy Leader)
Communities, Leisure, Sport, Parks, 
Countryside and Housing
Customer Services
Planning, Development and Property
Cabinet Support Member
Cabinet Support Member

Reports enclosed unless noted otherwise.

1. Apologies 

2. Minutes of the previous meeting (previously circulated) (Pages 3 - 8)

3. Urgent items of Business, if any (24 hours notice to be provided to the Chairman) 

4. Declarations of Interest, if any 
1. Disclosable Pecuniary Interests
2. Other Interests

Public Document Pack



A G E N D A  (Continued)

5. Matters referred by an Overview and Scrutiny Panel, if any 

6. Items requested by Cabinet and/or Non-Cabinet Members in accordance with 
Cabinet Procedure Rules 8.5(b) and (e), if any 

7. Reports of Monitoring Officer and/or Chief Finance Officer, if any 

8. Leader 

8 .1 Forward Plan (Pages 9 - 12)
8 .2 First Quarter Financial, Procurement and Performance Review 2018/19 

(Pages 13 - 58)



STAFFORDSHIRE MOORLANDS DISTRICT COUNCIL

CABINET DECISIONS

TUESDAY, 19 JUNE 2018
PRESENT: Councillor S E Ralphs MBE (Chair) 

Councillors M Bowen, A Forrester, T Hall, D Ogden, S Scalise and 
E Wain

1 MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING (PREVIOUSLY CIRCULATED)

The Minutes of the meeting held on 24 April 2018 were approved.

2 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST, IF ANY

There were no declarations of interest made.

3 FORWARD PLAN

DECISION: That the Forward Plan for June 2018 be approved for publication.

4 FOURTH QUARTER FINANCIAL, PROCUREMENT AND PERFORMANCE 
REVIEW 2017/18

The purpose of the report was to inform members of the Council’s overall 
performance and financial position for the period ended 31st March 2018 (“Fourth 
Quarter 2017/18”).  The report was considered by the Resources Overview and 
Scrutiny Panel on 6 June 2018.  The position can be summarised as follows:

Subject Headline
Finance The headlines for the Fourth Quarter were:

Performance against Budget
 At the Quarter Four stage the General Fund provisional outturn for 

2017/18 was an underspend of £1,497,076

Efficiency Programme
 The overall efficiency target of £661,000 for 2017/18 had been 

achieved 

Capital Programme
 The revised Capital Programme budget for 2017/18 was set at 

£1.71m  
 The provisional outturnwais £1.55m which represented an 

underspend of £0.16m relating primarily to re-profiling of the Asset 
Management Plan.

Treasury Management
 Cash investments held at 31st March 2018 totalled £5.6 million. 
 The Ascent loan and debenture currently stood at £19 million.
 Council borrowing at 31st March 2018 totalled £12.9 million (£12 

million of which relates to the Ascent loan)Page 3

Agenda Item 2



Cabinet - 19 June 2018

Subject Headline
 The Council’s net interest receipts budget had achieved a surplus 

of £35,713.

Revenue Collection
 98.6% of Council Tax was collected by 31 March 2018 (98% 

target exceeded), compared to 98.7% for the same period last 
year.

 98.5% of Business Rates was collected by 31 March 2018 (98.1% 
target exceeded) compared with 98.8% for the same period last 
year.

 At the end of the year the value of sundry debt that was over 60 
days old was £110,423 which compared with £127,221 at 31 
March 2017 (5% reduction target exceeded).

Procurement The headlines for the Fourth Quarter were:

 30 procurement activities were completed 
 At the 31 March 2018, 71% of procurement activity undertaken 

was on the forward plan and the Council paid 96% of its invoices 
within 30 days during the year

Performance The headlines for the Fourth Quarter were:

 Targets for 76% of the key performance indicators were met
 Of the 24 Priority Actions within the Corporate Plan, 2 were still to 

commence, 4 were complete, 1 was closed, 2 were rated amber, 
the remainder being classified as ‘Green’; and

 The Council received 43 complaints, 55 comments and 22 
compliments in the Fourth Quarter. 

 Repeat complaints and response times were both on track
 

Options considered:

Detailed Analysis was contained within the main body of the Report.

DECISION:

1. That the Fourth Quarter 2017/18 financial, procurement and performance 
position detailed in Appendices A, B and C and summarised at 3.3 of the 
covering report be noted.

2. That the proposed allocation of the surplus on the General Fund Revenue 
Account to reserves as explained in Appendix A of the report (paragraph 2.9) be 
noted.

5 PERFORMANCE FRAMEWORK 2018/19 (INCORPORATING THE ANNUAL 
REPORT 2017/18 AND REVISED CORPORATE PLAN 2018-2019)

The purpose of the report was to:

 Provide members with an opportunity to scrutinise the draft Performance 
Framework and associated targets for 2018/19

Page 4



Cabinet - 19 June 2018

 Present the findings from the Annual Report and how these had 
influenced the Framework and Corporate Plan refresh

 Outline the suggested approach and timescale for approval of the 
2018/19 Performance Framework.   

The report was considered by the Resources Overview and Scrutiny Panel on 6 
June 2018.

Options considered:

Members were asked to consider the proposed targets and to make amendments if 
they considered that they were necessary.

DECISION:

1. That the Performance Framework and Annual Report be approved.

2. That the revised Corporate Plan refresh be recommended to Council for 
approval.

6 STAFFORDSHIRE MOORLANDS GROWTH STRATEGY

The purpose of this report is to update the Cabinet on the progress of the Draft 
Growth Strategy for Staffordshire Moorlands, being developed jointly in partnership 
between SMDC and SCC.  The report was considered by the Service Delivery 
Overview and Scrutiny Panel on 23 May 2018.

Options considered:

Option 1: Do not agree approval for consultation.  Under this option, the Council 
would not seek public and stakeholder consultation on draft Growth Strategy. This 
would mean that there was less opportunity for key partners and residents to 
influence local strategy.  Not recommended.

Option 2: Agree approval for consultation for opportunity for key partners and 
residents to influence local strategy. Recommended

DECISION:

1. That the Draft Growth Strategy be noted. 

2. That  the Draft Growth Strategy for Staffordshire Moorlands be approved for 
publication for the purpose of public consultation.  

7 COMMUNITY RIGHT TO BID POLICY

The Council adopted a Community Right to Bid/Assets of Community Value Policy in 
December 2012, based on the Council’s experience since that date and the growing 
body of case law amendments were proposed to the current policy. 

Options considered:

 To approve the revised Community Right to Bid policy (Recommended).
Page 5



Cabinet - 19 June 2018

 To not approve the revised Community Right to Bid policy (Not recommended).

DECISION:

That the revised Community Right to Bid Policy (contained in Appendix 1 of the 
report) be approved.

8 SAFEGUARDING CHILDREN AND ADULTS AT RISK OF ABUSE AND 
NEGLECT

The Council last revised its Safeguarding Policy in 2016. An amended policy was 
presented to reflect recent legislative and other changes. The report also provided 
an update to Councillors on the Council’s actions to meet its safeguarding duties. 

Options considered:

None.

DECISION:

1. That the actions taken by the Council in response to its safeguarding duties be 
noted.

2. That the amended Safeguarding Policy be approved.

9 STAFFORDSHIRE MOORLANDS LOCAL PLAN: GREEN 
INFRASTRUCTURE STRATEGY; MAY 2018

A Green Infrastructure Strategy has been prepared to support the Local Plan.  The 
Strategy has been prepared in collaboration with a number of external partners and 
has been subject to public consultation.  This report sets out the results of the 
consultation and recommends that the amended GI Strategy is adopted. 

Options considered:

There were three options:

Option 1 – Decline to adopt the Staffordshire Moorlands Local Plan: Green 
Infrastructure Strategy; May 2018.  A GI Strategy for the District was required by 
national and local planning policy.  Failure to include a GI Strategy with the evidence 
base supporting the Local Plan risks the plan being found unsound at Examination. 
Not recommended 

Option 2 – Approve the adoption of the Staffordshire Moorlands Local Plan: Green 
Infrastructure Strategy; May 2018, but subject to fundamental modification of the 
document.  The May 2018 GI Strategy had been approved by a Steering Group of 
external partners who have collaborated in its preparation and who would, alongside 
the Council, be principal partners in its delivery.  Fundamental revision of the 
Strategy would require further consultation and this may delay preparation of the 
Strategy such that it could not be submitted alongside the Local Plan.  Not 
recommended

Option 3 – Adopt the Staffordshire Moorlands Local Plan: Green Infrastructure 
Strategy; May 2018.  The adoption of the GI Strategy would provide a strategic Page 6



Cabinet - 19 June 2018

framework for the development of a network of habitat corridors and linked green 
spaces in the District that would form part of the evidence base for Local Plan 
policies, inform the Local Plan Infrastructure Delivery Plan, assist with development 
management decisions and inform the contributions required from new 
developments.  Recommended 

DECISION:

1. The the preparation of a Staffordshire Moorlands Green Infrastructure Strategy, 
the consultation feedback received and the subsequent action taken be noted 
and that the adoption of the Strategy be approved.

2. That the adoption of the strategy be approved to be used as background 
evidence to support and inform the development of the policies in the Local Plan.  

10 EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC

RESOLVED - That, pursuant to Section 100A(2) and (4) of the Local Government 
Act, 1972, the public be excluded from the meeting in view of the 
nature of the business to be transacted or the nature of the 
proceedings whereby it is likely that confidential information as 
defined in Section 100A (3) of the Act would be disclosed to the 
public in breach of the obligation of confidence or exempt 
information as defined in Section 100 I (1) of Part 1 of Schedule 12A 
of the Act would be disclosed to the public by virtue of the 
Paragraphs indicated.

11 ALLIANCE ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES (AES) - PHASE 2 - TRANSFER 
OF SERVICES

The Cabinet approved a report that considered the service financial arrangements, 
specification, service delivery and performance framework for services to be 
transferred to Alliance Environmental Service (AES).

The meeting closed at 2.20 pm

_________________________________Chairman 
Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank



1

CABINET FORWARD PLAN 

August - October 2018
The Forward Plan is a list of decisions the Council’s Cabinet intends to take 
shortly. Some of these decisions are known as ‘Key Decisions.’  The Plan is 
updated and published 28 days before each meeting of the Cabinet and is 
available, together with all public reports referred to, from our website 
www.staffsmoorlands.gov.uk and offices, Moorlands House, Stockwell Street, 
Leek, Staffordshire Moorlands, ST13 6HQ.  Should you have any questions 
regarding these documents please contact the Council’s Member Services Team 
via our website or by telephoning 01538 395613.

A key decision is one defined as:

"One likely to result in expenditure or savings which are significant having regard 
to the Council's budget for the service or function to which the decision relates."

OR

"To be significant in terms of its effect on communities living or working in an 
area comprising two or more District Wards."

Documents relating to matters listed, and which are open to the public, will be 
available five working days before the date of the meeting by visiting the 
Council’s website www.staffsmoorlands.gov.uk or by telephoning 01538 395551. 
They are also available from our offices – Moorlands House, Stockwell Street, 
Leek Staffordshire Moorlands, ST13 6HQ. Other documents relevant to decisions 
to be taken may be submitted to the decision maker.

Meetings of the Cabinet are held in public.  However, occasionally, some 
meetings, or part of meetings, may need to be held in private due to the content 
of the reports to be discussed (e.g. commercially sensitive or personal 
information).  This document indicates which reports and dates of meetings 
where this will apply and the reason for this. 

Five days before a private meeting takes place the Council will publish a further 
notice of its intention to hold a meeting in private.  This will again state why this is 
necessary and give the details of any representations received about why the 
meeting should be open to the public.  This will also include a statement of the 
Council’s response to any such representations.

Page 9

Agenda Item 8.1

http://www.staffsmoorlands.gov.uk/
http://www.staffsmoorlands.gov.uk/


2

I N D E X

Matter to be decided Date of decision 
to be made

Page 
No.

ENVIRONMENT

Environmental Enforcement Annual Update 9 October 2018 3

LEADER
First Quarter Financial, Procurement and Performance Review 
2018/19 19 June 2018 4

Page 10



3

Environment

Matter for decision Environmental Enforcement Annual Update

Key decision to be made on 
behalf of the Council No

Decision maker Cabinet

Expected date of decision 9 October 2018

Relevant Portfolio Holder Cllr Forrester

Relevant Overview & Scrutiny 
Panel Service Delivery

Documents submitted to the 
decision taker for 
consideration

Report of the Executive Director (People)

Public/Private report Public

Page 11



4

Leader

Matter for decision First Quarter Financial, Procurement and 
Performance Review 2018/19

Key decision to be made on 
behalf of the Council No

Decision maker Cabinet

Expected date of decision 7 August 2018

Relevant Portfolio Holder Cllr Ralphs

Relevant Overview & Scrutiny 
Panel Resources

Documents submitted to the 
decision taker for 
consideration

Report of the Executive Director 
(Transformation)

Public/Private report Public

Page 12



STAFFORDSHIRE MOORLANDS DISTRICT COUNCIL

Report to Cabinet

7 August 2018

Appendices Attached
 Appendix A (2018/19 – First Quarter Financial Report)
 Appendix B (2018/19 – First Quarter Procurement Report) 
 Appendix C (2018/19 – First Quarter Performance Report)

1. Reason for the Report

1.1 The purpose of this report is to inform members of the Council’s overall 
performance and financial position for the period ended 30th June 2018 (“first 
quarter 2018/19”).

2. Recommendations

2.1 It is recommended that the Cabinet: 

 Note the First Quarter 2018/19 financial, procurement and performance 
position detailed in Appendices A, B and C and summarised at 3.3 of this 
covering report; and

 Approves the revision to the authorisation thresholds as part of the 
Council’s Procurement Procedure Rules – this reflects the amendment to 
the threshold for EU Supplies and Services (increased from £164,176 to 
£181,302).

3. Executive Summary

3.1 This report summarises the Council’s financial, procurement and performance 
position after considering service activity up to the end of the First Quarter 
(i.e. 30th June 2018). 

TITLE: First Quarter Financial, Procurement and 
Performance Review 2018/19

PORTFOLIO HOLDER Cllr Sybil Ralphs – Leader

CONTACT OFFICERS: Claire Hazeldene – Finance & Procurement
Vanessa Higgins - Performance 

WARDS INVOLVED: Non-Specific

Page 13

Agenda Item 8.2



3.2 Detailed analysis is provided in Appendix A (Finance), Appendix B 
(Procurement) and Appendix C (Performance). The position can be 
summarised as follows:-

Subject Headline Reference
Finance The headlines for the first quarter are:

Performance against Budget
 The General Fund budget for 2018/19 is forecast to be £37,710 

underspent.
Efficiency Programme
 The overall efficiency target of £830,000 for 2018/19 is projected 

to be achieved – with £175,370 achieved at the end of Q1. 
However, this is dependent on the progression of key efficiency 
programmes.  Any shortfall can be funded using the earmarked 
reserve established to meet some of the costs incurred in 
implementing the programme.

Capital Programme
 The revised Capital Programme budget for 2018/19 is £5.8 million 

including the carry forward of capital underspends from 2017/18.  
The projected outturn for the year is £5.8 million at this stage.

Treasury Management
 Cash investments held at 30th June 2018 totalled £5.7 million. 

The Ascent loan and debenture currently stands at £14 million;
 Council borrowing at 30th June 2018 totalled £12.9 million (£12 

million of which relates to the Ascent loan);
 The Council’s net interest receipts budget is projected to be on 

target. 
Revenue Collection
 29.6% of Council Tax was collected by 30th June 2018 compared 

to 29.7% for the same period last year;
 29.0% of Business Rates was collected by 30 June 2018 

compared with 28.9% for the same period last year;
 At the end of Quarter One the value of sundry debt that was over 

60 days old was £82,560 which compares with £151,780 at 30th 
June 2017.

Appendix A

Procurement The headlines for the first quarter are:
 21 procurement activities were completed; 
 The forward plan includes 49 procurement activities for 2018/19 

(either SMDC only or joint.);
 At the 30th June 2018, 51% of procurement activity undertaken 

was on the forward plan and the Council paid 95% of its invoices 
within 30 days during the year.

Appendix B 

Performance The headlines for the first quarter are:
 Performance in respect of 81% of the key performance indicators 

is on track;
 Of the 25 Priority Actions within the Corporate Plan, two are still to 

commence, one is rated amber awaiting a decision, the remainder 
being classified as ‘Green’; and

 The Council received 21 complaints, 60 comments and 18 
compliments in the First Quarter. Repeat complaints and response 
times both on track. 

Appendix C

Page 14



4.      How this Report Links to Corporate Priorities 

4.1 The successful delivery of all corporate priorities is dependent upon the 
effective management of performance and financial resources, which is the 
subject of this report.

5.      Options and Analysis

5.1 Detailed Analysis is contained within the appendices.

6. Implications

6.1 Community Safety - (Crime and Disorder Act 1998)
None.

6.2 Workforce
None.

6.3 Equality and Diversity/Equality Impact Assessment
This report has been prepared in accordance with the Council's Equality 
and Diversity policies.

6.4 Financial Considerations
There are substantial financial considerations contained throughout the 
report.

6.5 Legal
None.

16.6 Sustainability
None.

6.7   External Consultation
  None.

6.8          Risk Assessment
There are a number of risks to the financial position presented, which are 
identified and explained in the financial report attached at Appendix A.

ANDREW P STOKES
Executive Director (Transformation) & Chief Finance Officer

6.4

Page 15



Web Links and
Background Papers

Location Contact details

Various background working papers Moorlands House Claire Hazeldene
01538 395400 Ext. 4191

Vanessa Higgins 
01538 395400 Ext. 4195

Page 16



 

APPENDIX A

2018/19

First Quarter
 Financial 

Review

 

Page 17



1. Background and Introduction

1.1. In accordance with the Council’s Financial Procedure Rules and 
recommended good practice, a quarterly financial report is presented to 
members. This is the first report for 2018/19.

1.2. The report summarises overall financial performance for 2018/19 with 
particular emphasis on the key sources of financial risk to the Council. 
Specific considerations are as follows:

 General Fund Revenue Account (Section 2) – considers budgetary 
performance on the General Account by looking at variations in income 
and expenditure and the funding received by the Council. 

 Efficiency and Rationalisation Programme (Section 3) – considers 
progress in achieving the efficiency and rationalisation savings forecast for 
2018/19. 

 Capital Programme (Section 4) – provides an update to Members on 
progress against the Council’s capital plan 

 Treasury Management (Section 5) – sets out the key statistics in terms 
of investments and borrowings;

 Revenue Collection (Section 6) – considers progress-to-date in 
collecting the Council Tax and Business Rates.

Page 18



2. General Fund Revenue Account

2.1. This section of the report considers the financial performance of the General 
Fund Revenue Account against budget by setting out variations in income 
and expenditure and funding received by the Council. 

Service 2018/19 
Budget

Expected 
Outturn 
2018/19

Variance

 £ £ £
Alliance  Management Team 65,010 55,880 (9,130)
Audit 9,940 8,940 (1,000)
ICT 708,010 700,110 (7,900)
Human Resources 65,860 53,860 (12,000)
Member Services 309,800 307,320 (2,480)
Property Services 954,080 954,080 -
Benefits (338,580) (283,770) 54,810
Planning Applications (458,310) (458,310) -
Building Control 16,210 16,210 -
Customer Services 115,800 103,800 (12,000)
Legal Services 64,520 17,220 (47,300)
Electoral Services 84,470 43,790 (40,680)
Licensing and Land Charges (221,710) (221,710) -
Regeneration 195,300 390,090 194,790
Communities and Cultural 166,380 158,640 (7,740)
Housing Strategy 43,110 (34,890) (78,000)
Transformation 7,260 7,570 310
Community Safety and Enforcement 175,050 171,900 (3,150)
Finance, Income and Procurement (99,780) (81,780) 18,000
Corporate Finance* 6,281,610 6,223,610 (58,000)
Waste Collection 1,216,320 1,236,330 20,010
Street Scene 330,510 337,940 7,430
Leisure Services 640,890 641,090 200
Horticulture 583,290 561,600 (21,690)
Visitor Services (547,650) (545,040) 2,610
Environmental Health (8,060) (8,060) -
    
Net Total of Services 10,359,330 10,356,420 (2,910)
    
Net Interest (347,520) (347,520) -

10,011,810 10,008,900 (2,910)

Funding   : external (9,210,760) (9,220,080) (9,320)
                 : reserves - contribution/(use) (801,050) (826,530) (25,480)

    
Projected (Surplus)/Deficit - (37,710) (37,710)
    

* Staff budgets are currently budgeted within Corporate Finance. 

Page 19



2.2. A revenue budget of £10,011,810 was set for 2018/19. The table above 
shows how this budget has been allocated to services.

2.3. The Q1 projected outturn on the General Fund Revenue Account for the year 
is £9,974,100. This represents a projected surplus for the year of £37,710.

2.4. There are two areas of significant underspend projected on the General Fund 
Revenue Account:

 Housing Strategy (£78,000 underspend) - The housing needs function of 
this service area can benefit from third party funding of varying but 
sometimes substantial amounts to be targeted at homelessness initiatives 
in the district.  The unpredictable nature of these grants and the extended 
timeframe of the various initiatives often require the use of earmarked 
reserves to match funding to costs. At this stage therefore some £58,000 
of the projected underspend has been earmarked to move into reserves.

 Corporate Finance (£58,000 underspend) - Corporate Finance records 
the Authority’s performance against its efficiency savings target and the 
consolidation of savings against corporate budgets such as for employee 
costs.  This cashing-up exercise, as reported at section 3 below, is 
forecasting that  the planned in-year efficiency savings will be delivered 
plus a small £4,000 surplus.
A further £54,000 underspend is anticipated as a result of the transfer of 
the Fairer Charging and Welfare Benefits Team to Staffordshire County 
Council.  As all staff budgets are recorded in Corporate Finance the 
saving against transferring staff is shown here.  The transfer is however 
resulting in a similar overspend on the Benefits Service (below) as a 
result of a loss of third party funding. 

2.5. There are two areas of significant overspend projected on the General Fund 
Revenue Account:

 Benefits (£54,810 overspend) - As reported in Corporate Finance (above) 
the Fairer Charging and Welfare Benefits Team is transferring to 
Staffordshire County Council.  Prior to transfer the County made 
contributions to the Benefits Service to support the Team’s activities.  
With the transfer these contributions cease giving rise to the projected 
overspend.

 Regeneration (£194,790 overspend) - The service is facing significant in 
year cost pressures around both the creation of the Local Plan and 
various initiatives to support the development of the District. To some 
degree these pressures were anticipated by the creation in prior years of 
earmarked reserves. At this stage some £105,130 of these reserves are 
to be drawn down against the overspend.

 
2.6. The level of funding anticipated for the year is £34,800 above that budgeted 

due to the following:

Page 20



External Funding: (£9,320)
 Business Rates Retention (£9,320) – no significant variance to the level of 

retained business rates is anticipated at the first quarter. This will continue 
to be monitored over the coming periods with particularly in relation to 
fluctuations in the provision for appeals and rateable value reductions.

Use of Earmarked Reserves: (£25,480)
 

 Electoral Services £26,680 contribution: this is a budgeted annual 
contribution in to a reserve earmarked to spread the cost of the District’s 
elections over the term of a council.

 Housing Strategy £58,000 contribution: Third party funds received in-year 
are being set aside to support homelessness initiatives that will run into 
future years.

 Regeneration Services £105,130 use:  The £40,000 Local Development 
Framework Reserve is to be applied to support in-year overspend on the 
Local Plan. Other activities of the Service are to be funded by a draw 
down of £65,130 of New Burdens Grants received in prior years and 
earmarked to support regeneration projects in the District.

 Horticulture £5,030 use: Works on Recreation Grounds and Open Spaces 
are part funded each year by drawing down on Section 106 monies 
previously received from Developers as part of their planning obligations.  

Page 21



3. Efficiency and Rationalisation Programme

3.1. This section of the report considers the financial performance of the Council’s 
Efficiency and Rationalisation Programme in 2018/19.

3.2. The Council’s Medium-Term Financial Plan (approved in February 2018) 
included the four-year (2017/18 – 2020/21) Efficiency and Rationalisation 
Strategy targeting savings of £3.14 million.  This was required to balance the 
forecast budget deficit position of £2.7m and also the carry forward of 
unachieved efficiencies from 2016/17 of £0.4m.

3.3. The Efficiency and Rationalisation Strategy is premised on the need to both 
reduce expenditure and increase income. The need to grow income is now 
more of a priority as the Council moves more towards being self-financing. 
The strategy has been developed with the underlying principles of protecting 
frontline service delivery. It is also intended that the strategy is a tool to 
enable the Council to ensure that its service spending is determined by the 
established priorities set out in the Corporate Plan.

3.4. The Strategy has five main areas of focus:

 Major Procurements - There is the opportunity to focus attention on a 
number of large service functions which are currently provided by an 
external contractor / supplier. A number of significant contracts are coming 
to an end. This will also allow a fundamental review of these services with 
proper consideration of the current financial constraints. The contract 
commitments have sometimes restricted the opportunity to align services 
across the alliance with High Peak.  The individual projects will focus on 
Waste Collection & Environment Services, Leisure Management and 
Facilities Management

 Asset Management Plan – continuation of the existing priority of 
rationalising the Council’s asset base with a focus around priorities in 
order to allow for the necessary capital investment

 Growth – development of a clear focus upon housing and economic 
growth based upon the established Local Plan. 

 Income Generation – focus on increasing the yield from existing sources 
on income and a drive towards identifying new sources of income

 Rationalisation – a commitment to reducing expenditure on non-priority 
areas of spend e.g. management arrangements, channel shift, non-
statutory services 

3.5. The 2018/19 budget provides for the achievement of £830,000 of such 
savings in year – with a significant focus on growth, income generation and 
major procurements, particularly the waste collection joint arrangement 
involving Alliance Environmental Services (AES).

3.6. At the end of Quarter One, £83,370 has been taken against the overall 
Efficiency programme. A further £92,000 of income related savings were also 
delivered at budget-setting time, including income arising out of revised New 
Homes Bonus funding forecasts. This leaves £654,630 of savings to be 

Page 22



achieved over the remaining three quarters. At this early stage, it is forecast 
that the savings target in the Efficiency Plan will be delivered by the end of 
the financial year.

3.7. The Authority carries a reserve of £493,000 earmarked to support the 
Strategy which can be drawn on to offset any remaining one-off and short 
term costs  of delivering the efficiency programme and any shortfall against 
the 2018/19 efficiency target. At this stage there is no requirement to draw on 
this reserve during the year. This requirement will be monitored throughout 
the year.

Page 23



4. Capital Programme 

4.1. This section of the report provides an update to members on the Council’s 
Capital Programme.

4.2. The table below shows a high level (service) summary of the General Fund 
Capital Programme position at 30th June 2018. Further detail – on a scheme 
by scheme basis – is contained in Annex A:

Service
 

2018/19  
Approved 

Budget 
Q1

Changes 
2018/19 
Revised  
Budget

Expected 
Outturn 
2018/19

Expected 
Variance 
2018/19

£ £ £ £ £
Expenditure
Housing Standards 1,241,000            650 1,241,650 1,241,650 -
Property Services 1,749,570      103,870 1,853,440 1,853,440 -
ICT 19,390               -   19,390 19,390 -
Other              -     2,084,890 2,084,890 2,084,890 -
Regeneration 100,000          5,520 105,520 105,520 -
Horticulture 500,000               -   500,000 500,000 -

3,609,960   2,194,930 5,804,890 5,804,890 -
Funding     
External  Contributions 1,241,000       (2,610) 1,238,390 1,238,390 -
Capital Receipts      21,000       (3,000) 18,000      18,000 -
Reserves -   1,373,680 1,373,680  ,373,680 -
Planning obligations 114,000               -   114,000 114,000 -
Borrowing 2,233,960      826,860 3,060,820 3,060,820 -

3,609,960   2,194,930 5,804,890 5,804,890 -

4.3. The 2018/19 General Fund Capital Budget was approved by Council in 
February 2018 (£3,609,960 within the MTFP); May (£5,694,850 revised 
programme incorporating vehicle purchases) and June (£93,210 the carry 
forward from 2017/18). A budget adjustment of £16,830 has also been 
included in Quarter One resulting in a revised 2018/19 budget of £5,804,890.

4.4. The changes made to the capital programme since approval in February are 
as follows:
 
 (£2,084,890 increase) The capital programme was revised in May 2018 to 

include provision for fleet vehicle acquisitions. Following transfer of the 
waste collection service to Alliance and Environmental Services (AES) 
new fleet management arrangements have been agreed. Existing 
contract hire agreements have been terminated and the vehicles have 
been directly purchased

 (£93,210 increase) The carry forward of 2017/18 capital budget variances 
as a result of projects which were either behind schedule or had 
progressed quicker than expected in the year.

Page 24



 (£16,830 increase)  A budget adjustment to cancel the carry forward of 
overspend from 2017/18 against Disabled Facilities Grants (DFGs) - the 
additional DFGs processed in 2017/18 were funded from external grants. 
The proposed reduction to the current year’s budget is therefore no 
longer required 

4.5. There are no capital expenditure variances forecast at this early stage. 
Members should note that the final out turn of the capital programme is 
dependant on the progress of a number of schemes still to be developed; 
including significant investment in Public Buildings.

Page 25



5. Treasury Management

5.1. This section of the report sets out the key treasury management statistics in 
relation to the Council’s investments and borrowings. This report comprises a 
high level treasury management summary. The Audit and Accounts 
Committee receives detailed operational updates on treasury management.

    Investments

5.2. Cash Investments held on the 30th June 2018 totalled £5.7 million. Interest 
earned on these investments during quarter 1 totalled £12,875. The average 
level of funds available for investment during quarter 1 was £8.7 million.

5.3. The Council has budgeted to receive £73,590 in investment income in 
2018/19. The budget was set with the potential for one Bank of England base 
rate rise of 0.25% during 2018/19. Pending the outcome of this, current 
investment income levels are on target to meet the budget.

    Ascent Joint Venture

5.4. Ascent (the joint venture company set up to deliver affordable housing across 
the district) had drawn the full £5 million debenture facility by the end of 
2014/15. Interest is charged at 2%, therefore the budgeted interest income for 
the year is £100,000; this is on target.

5.5. The balance on the £20 million loan facility to Ascent remains at £14 million. 
There have been no further drawdowns of the loan since the 2015/16 year. 
Interest charged is based on the 5 year PWLB rate on the date of the 
drawdown plus a 1.25% risk premium. The refinanced tranche 1 of £7 million 
matures in October 2018. The income budget of £446,690 is currently 
reported to be on target pending the outcome of the Ascent LLP business 
plan review.

    Borrowing

5.6. Total debt outstanding as at 30th June 2018 totalled £12.9 million. £12 million 
has been used to fund the Ascent loan, the remaining £0.9 million relates to 
finance leases.

5.7. The Council has budgeted to incur £272,760 in interest charges in 2018/19. 
This was based on externally funding the full existing Ascent Loan Balance of 
£14 million and a £2.2 million general fund borrowing requirement in the 
current year capital programme. 

5.8. The general fund borrowing requirement has been revised to £2.9 million; and 
£2 million of the Ascent loan balance continues to be funded internally. These 
savings from internal borrowing are forecast to offset the additional borrowing 
costs resulting from the higher borrowing requirement and the budget is 
anticipated to be on target. Opportunities for new borrowing will be monitored 

Page 26



during the year considering the actual borrowing requirement and the cost of 
carry of any borrowings taken.

Page 27



6. Revenue Collection

6.1. This section of the report details progress to date in collecting the Council 
Tax, Business Rates and Sundry Debt.

6.2. The Q1 collection rate outturn for the year 2018/19 was as follows:

 Council Tax – 29.6% of Council Tax was collected by 30 June 2018, 
compared to 29.7% for the same period last year.

 Business Rates – 29.0% of Business Rates was collected by 30 June 
2018, compared with 28.9% for the same period last year.

6.3. At the end of Quarter One the value of sundry debt that was over 60 days old 
was £82,560 which compares with £151,780 at 30th June 2017. While over 
half of the reduction reflects a fall in the level of outstanding debt the rest is 
down to a change in classification. The debt outstanding on a number of 
historic invoices, raised to recover the overpayment of housing benefit, has 
been transferred back to the benefits system.  It will be recovered where 
possible against on-going payments of benefit.

Page 28



ANNEX A

Capital Programme Update 30th June 2018

Capital Schemes
2018/19  

Approved 
Budget 

Q1 
Changes 

2018/19 
Revised  
Budget

Expected 
Outturn 
2018/19

Expected 
Variance 
2018/19

 £ £ £ £ £

Housing Standards      

Private Sector Grants 1,211,000
           

650 1,211,650 1,211,650               -   
Landlord Accreditation Scheme      30,000              -   30,000 30,000               -   

Total Environmental Health 1,241,000
           

650 1,241,650 1,241,650               -   
Property Services      

Asset Management Plan 1,749,570
     

103,870 1,853,440 1,853,440               -   

 Total Property 1,749,570
     

103,870 1,853,440 1,853,440               -   
ICT 19,390  19,390 19,390               -   

 Total ICT 19,390              -   19,390 19,390               -   
Other Schemes      

Vehicle & Plant Purchase            -   
  

2,084,890 
 

2,084,890 
  

2,084,890               -   

Total Other Schemes            -   
  

2,084,890 
 

2,084,890 
  

2,084,890               -   
Regeneration      

Moorlands Partnership Grants 50,000
        

5,520 55,520 55,520               -   
Butter Market 50,000              -   50,000 50,000               -   

Total Regeneration 100,000
        

5,520 105,520 105,520               -   
Horticulture      
Play - Projects 500,000              -   500,000 500,000               -   

Total Horticulture 500,000              -   500,000 500,000               -   
      

Total Programme 3,609,960
  

2,194,930 5,804,890 5,804,890               -   

Page 29



This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX B

2018/19

First Quarter
 Procurement 

Review

Page 31



1. Introduction

1.1 A key element of the financial savings included in the Council’s Efficiency & 
Rationalisation Strategy is being met from the implementation of the 
Procurement Strategy which was agreed by Councillors in April 2014. 

1.2 The strategy was developed to ensure that its objectives link closely with the 
Council’s overall strategic vision and aims and objectives.  The key actions in 
in the strategy included:

 Delivery of cashable efficiency savings to support the Efficiency & 
Rationalisation Strategy by tendering, retendering and renegotiating of 
contracts.

 Development and embedding a professional procurement unit of 
excellence to deliver on going efficiency savings for the Councils

 Revising Financial and Procurement Procedure Rules to support 
transparency, timeliness of contract award and greater control

 Expanding the usage of electronic procurement systems for works as 
appropriate

 Increasing the levels of spend covered by the contract
 Implementation of e-tendering
 Supporting the local economy by increasing the number of procurement 

opportunities advertised and adoption of a local business concordat

1.3 Significant progress has been made since April 2014, in conjunction with the 
external support of the Alliance Transformation partner Northgate 
Information Solutions.  The reliance on this external support has now ended 
as the new Procurement is now embedded. This has enabled new working 
initiatives to be implemented, including the integration of the creditors 
function into procurement will ensure the ‘Purchase to Pay Cycle’ is robust 
and able to meet the demands of efficiency and performance targets.

1.4 Additionally, the introduction of new systems and electronic processes now 
enables the Alliance to be fully compliant in accordance with Transparency 
Code and Public Contract Regulations requirements – with all procurement 
opportunities over £5,000 now openly advertised.

1.5 The Procurement Procedure Rules have been recently updated and the 
updated Procurement Strategy is scheduled for presentation during 2018/19. 

Page 32



2. First Quarter Completed Procurements

2.1 The activity supported by the procurement function during the first quarter 
April - June 2018 is summarised below:

First Quarter  High Value 
(> £181,000)

Low Value    
(< £181,000) Total

SMDC Only 1 13 14
JOINT (SM/HP) 1 6 7
TOTAL 2 19 21

2.2 Annex A provides details of the 21 procurements exercises reviewed and 
completed during Quarter 1.

2.4 No cashable savings have been made as a result of procurement activity to 
date this year, this will continue to be monitored throughout the year and any 
savings identified will be offset against the efficiency programme.

2.5 A number of one-off procurement exercises have also taken place – which 
may result in savings against overall budget.  This will be assessed when 
reviewing overall expenditure and undertaking a comparison against budget 
to identify where budgets can be reduced due to procurement activity.   

Page 33



3. 2018/19 Procurement Forward Plan

3.1 The table below details the number of exercises which fall into either low or 
high value (profiled over full contract term) scheduled for completion in 
2018/19.

2018/19 Activity  High Value 
(> £181,000)

Low Value    
(< £181,000) Total

SMDC Only 1 15 16
JOINT (SM/HP) 7 26 33
TOTAL 8 41 49

3.2 In addition to the above, there are 131 listed entries brought forward from 
previous years (for review and  completion for both HPBC and SMDC 
combined).

 
3.3 Some of the more significant ‘high level’ procurement activity that is 

scheduled for delivery in 2018/19 includes:-

 Skate park projects Leek and Cheadle
 Leisure centre management 
 CCTV maintenance and monitoring arrangements
 Leek markets logistic support (market stalls)
 Insurance

Page 34



4. Procurement Performance

4.1 This section reports on the Council performance in terms of procurement 
activity and the payment of suppliers.

4.2 Performance for the fourth quarter is highlighted below:

Performance Indicator Target Performance at 
30th June 2018

% of Alliance Procurement 
Activity on Forward Plan 72% 51%

Annual contract spend as % of 
gross expenditure budget 84% 84%

% of invoices paid within 30 days 96% 95%

4.3 The Council has had a number of issues with suppliers quoting historic 
Purchase Order (PO’s) numbers on invoices which were still active on the 
system and therefore not rejected, the service area had raised new 
replacement POs and not closed down the historic ones.  The circumstances 
for this were out of the control of creditors and if the supplier had conformed 
to the new PO then target would have been achieved for Q1.

  
4.4 During Quarter 1 there have been a large amount of single source awards and 

smaller value quotations made for supplies and services which were not 
originally identified in the pre-quarter 1 consultations with Service Areas.  
Some of these are reactive and could not have been foreseen or planned 
however there is still activity that fits into lower value thresholds which 
previously would not have been reported on, values £2-5K.  Quarter 2 
consultations with Service Managers are underway to incorporate any activity 
that may not have previously been identified to procurement.

 
5. Revision to Authorisation thresholds – Council’s Procurement 

Procedure Rules

5.1 Under EU Directives and Public Contract Regulations 2015 the thresholds for 
Supplies, Services and Works change every two years. The Council aligns 
the identification of high level Value category of exercise using the EU 
Supplies and Services threshold.

5.2 The latest revision to the thresholds regulation was made in January 2018, 
the threshold increased from £164,176 to £181,302.  In order that the Council 
maintains consistency in this strategy, approval is sought for Annex B of this 

Page 35



report  (ANNEX C - Authority to Procure and Award of the Council’s 
Procurement Procedure Rules) to be updated to reflect this increase.

Page 36



ANNEX A

First Quarter Procurement Activity Completed – SMDC

Contract Description Recurring 
/ One-off

Procedure Service 
Area

 Award Term 
(yrs)

 Total 
Contract 

Value 

Butter and 
Trestle market 
repairs 

Refurbishment works 
to the Butter and 
Trestle market inc 
new roof windows, 
heating, lights, 
painting and doors. 
Roof repairs to make 
the building wind and 
water tight

One-off  Framework 
Direct 
Award

Assets 
Capital 
Projects

GF 
Tomlinson 

1   301,000 

Civic Transport 
Services 

Provision of car and 
driver for SMDC 
Chairman and Vice 
Chairman

Recurring  Single 
Source

Democra
tic 
Services

Shires 
Executive 
Travel 

     29,942 

SM Car parks 
Refurbishment 
Programme

Appointment of 
Consultant to assist 
in the car park 
refurbishments 
required 

One-off Framework 
Direct 
Award 

Assets 
Capital 
Projects

Townsend & 
Reanaudon 

3     23,528 

Rope Pyramid 
Westwood Rec 
Leek 

Installation of a rope 
Pyramid at 
Westwood Rec Leek 

One-off  Framework 
Further 
Comp

Ops 
Services 

Hags SMP 1     12,257 

Moorlands 
House 
Installation of 
Hearing Loops

Installation of hearing 
loops

One-off Tender Assets 
Capital 
Projects

Safe & 
Sound 
Products Ltd 

1     11,799 

Investment and 
Acquisition 
strategy for 
Staffordshire 

Consultancy One-off  Single 
Source

Regen CBRE Ltd 1       9,500 

Grass Cutting 
and Vegetation 
Clearance at 
various sites 
across the 
Staffordshire 
Moorlands

Grass Cutting & 
Vegetation Clearance 
at Wetley Moor 
Common and 
informal countryside 
sites 

Recurring RFQ Ops 
Services 

County 
Grounds 
Services Ltd 

1       8,895 

Page 37



Contract Description Recurring 
/ One-off

Procedure Service 
Area

 Award Term 
(yrs)

 Total 
Contract 

Value 

Full Ecological 
Survey of 
Brough park 
Lake and 
Margins 

Full survey required 
 

One-off RFQ Ops 
Services 

BSG 1       5,450 

Local Plan 
Heritage & 
Landscape 
response to 
representation 

Consultancy 
Appointment

One-off Single 
Source 

Planning Wardell 
Armstrong 

1       4,138 

Ayr Road 
Cheadle
Planning  

Consultancy support 
assessment

One-off  Single 
Source

Planning Keppie 
Massey 

1       3,500 

Leek Markets - 
Table Covers 

Covers for Leek 
Market Stalls 

One-off  RFQ Visitor 
Services 
- Tourism 
& 
Markets

City B Group 1       2,512 

JCB Ciecily 
Mills Viability 
Assessment 

Independent review / 
assessment of 
viability report 

One-off  RFQ Planning Keppie 
Massie 

1       1,850 

Milward House 
Viability 
Assessment 

Viability Assessment One-off  Single 
Source

Planning Keppie 
Massie 

1       1,850 

Pickwood 
Recreational 
Ground Leek 

Tarmac path repairs One-off  RFQ Ops 
Services 

MCP 
Properties 

1       2,136 

JOINT (SMDC / HPBC)

Contract Description Recurring 
/ One-off 

Procedure Service 
Area

Award Term 
(yrs)

 Total 
Contract 

Value 

Production of 
Stationery for 
Elections

Poll cards, postal 
voting packs, ballot 
papers

Annual 
Electoral 
services 
Canvas 

Annual electoral 
services Canvas 
(required by 
regulations) 
To take place 
between August and 
December each year
 

Recurring OJEU 
OPEN 
Tender 

Procedure

Legal & 
Election 
Services

Electoral 
Reform 
Services 

2  872,785 

Page 38



Contract Description Recurring 
/ One-off 

Procedure Service 
Area

Award Term 
(yrs)

 Total 
Contract 

Value 

Abandoned 
Vehicle 
recovery and 
disposal 

To remove and 
legally dispose and 
evidence that 
disposal of vehicles 
that have been 
abandoned in the 
area

Recurring  DS West 
Motors 

2    10,000 

Customer 
Service 
Excellence 
Training  
Course

Training programme 
for all Alliance Staff 
on Customer Service 
Excellence in 
respective Service 
areas.

One-off RFQ OD & HR Stuart 
Graham

1      8,139 

East Midlands 
Law Share

External Legal 
Procurement 
framework

Recurring Framework Legal & 
Election 
Services

East 
Midlands Law 
Share

Anthony 
Collins 
Solicitors 
(New) 
Bevan Brittan 
Browne 
Jacobson 
Freeths 
Geldards
Sharpe 
Pritchard 
Weightmans 

4  Variable 

Expert Witness 
Framework
Planning 
Appeals

Support for Planning 
challenges etc.  One 
off events core 
expertise which is 
required generally 
over a five year term. 

Recurring Direct 
Awards

Planning Not to be Procured under a fixed 
term arrangement - individual cases 
will be on Single source 
appointments 

Barrister 
Services

Support for Public 
Enquires and 
Housing work.  

Recurring Direct 
Awards

Legal & 
Election 
Services

Not to be Procured under a fixed 
term arrangement - individual cases 
will be on Single source 
appointments 

Page 39



ANNEX B

PROCUREMENT PROCEDURE RULES [ANNEX C]

AUTHORISATION LEVELS (2018 – 2020)

ANNEX C – SUMMARY OF AUTHORITY TO PROCURE AND AWARD 
THRESHOLDS

Award and Exemptions Authorisation Limits:

Total Contract Value    
(£)

Authorisation Authorisation By

<25,000 Head of Service / Executive 
Director

Webform

>25,000 - <181,302 
(EU Service 
Threshold)

Executive Director / Chief 
Executive

Webform

>181,302 (EU 
Service Threshold) - 
<1,000,000

Delegated Member 
Decision

Delegated Member Report 
(Portfolio Holder for 

Procurement and the 
relevant service area)

>1,000,000* Cabinet SMDC
Executive HPBC
(with prior Scrutiny 
Committee)

Committee Report

* Committee reports may be presented where the total contract value is less than £1,000,000 - 
where considered appropriate due to the nature of the procurement or where it relates to a key 
decision

Page 40



Staffs Moorlands Performance and Customer Feedback Report: 2018/19 (Q1)

P
age 41



Staffordshire Moorlands Q1 Summary 

The following report provides Councillors with an overview of performance at Staffs Moorlands for the period April to June 2018 in relation to 
the Council’s corporate plan priorities and the associated performance targets and projects. The report also provides an overview of the 
results from the Council’s customer feedback system in terms of how we handle and learn from complaints and the level of comments and 
compliments.      

Performance Overview 

There are 113 ‘monthly’, ‘quarterly’, and ‘annual only’ reported performance measures at Staffs Moorlands, four more than last year. The 
chart below shows the results for quarter one against 36 indicators and is in line with last year’s profile at this point in time. The actions being 
taken to address the ‘off track’ measures are detailed at the end of this report.

The report also provides an update on the progress of key projects that contribute to the priority actions outlined in the revised 2018-2019 
Corporate Plan. The table below right explains the colour coding used to describe the current status of these projects / actions. 

 

Customer Feedback Overview 

At the close of Quarter One the number of Stage 1 complaints stood at only 21, down from 51 last year. There have been no repeat complaints 
this quarter but the Council is marginally below target for handing complaints in 10 days against an increased target.    

Off Track

In danger of going off Track

On Track

Not yet started / Decision 
awaited

Complete / Closed

81%

19%

0

20

40

60

80

100

On Target Off Track

P
age 42



Aim 1: Help create a safer and healthier environment for our communities to live and work 

The high proportion of ‘off track’ measures under Aim One relate to four PIs: Benefits claims and change of circumstance processing, homeless 
cases currently ‘prevented’ under the new Homelessness Reduction Act, and external funding bids in support of sporting activity. Benefit 
processing workloads and issues with the customer portal have affected processing times this month. The low proportion of homeless cases 
‘prevented’ to date is also expected to improve as many cases will still be undetermined given the 56-day deadline.         

Celebrating Success: 

At the close of June 2018 the following performance indicators outstripped their targets:

 Households in temporary accommodation

P
age 43



Corporate Priority Actions – Progress Highlights

Priority Action Status Commentary – June
Help to ensure, through the scrutiny work programme, that 
partner service provision, particularly health provision for 
the elderly, is effective

The Health O&S Panel met on the 9th May 2018 and received an 
annual update from Andrew Hughes, Director of Strategy, 
Development and Estates, North Staffordshire Combined 
Healthcare NHS Trust.

The next meeting is due to be held on the 12th September. 
Staffordshire & Stoke on Trent Partnership NHS Trust have been 
invited in relation to Diabetic Eye Screening and the North 
Staffordshire Combined Healthcare NHS Trust regarding support 
for children with eating disorders. Both items have been 
requested by members of the Panel.

Undertake detailed process benchmarking with high 
performing / low cost councils with a view to identifying 
value for money improvements for Housing Benefit 
processing 

Corporate Plan Priorities and Annual report findings shared with 
senior managers. This has kick started the benchmarking 
activities and the Information Team have provided background 
data packs to facilitate process benchmarking by Managers in 
conjunction with their Finance Business Partners. Service is a 
member of a county-wide managers’ forum looking at benefits 
performance and measures. Post service review our costs have 
greatly reduced and when the latest figures are available will be 
completing site visits to partners.

Ensure the Council is compliant with the requirements of the 
new Homelessness Reduction Act 

This action overlaps the Universal Credit roll out. Preparation is 
progressing well with the identified actions. Productive meetings 
have been held with DWP & CAB partners and a project meeting 
was held in June.

There has been an increase in the number of cases but the 
Customer Services team have been trained and are now dealing 
with the Home Option enquiries/inbox. A process for loss of 
contact for homeless applicants has been completed and is 
awaiting advice on some technical aspects.

P
age 44



Priority Action Status Commentary – June
Budget trackers have been set up for Bed and Breakfast and 
other associated costs so budget spends can be tracked. A full 
review of Temporary Accommodation within the housing stock 
has been completed and converted to secure tenancies where 
possible.

Work is due to commence on a pre-eviction protocol with other 
RSLs mid-July. SLAs are being reviewed with Citizens Advice 
regarding the act and monitoring requirements.

Implement the Council’s new sport and physical activity 
strategy and carry out research into nil cost facility provision 
being achieved by other councils; in order to achieve 
improved health and value for money outcomes    

The appointed consultants have submitted the final reports and 
draft recommendations for consideration. Initial comments and 
feedback have been provided for final amendments. Agreed in 
principal with members for way forward.

Discussions with Key members from both Authorities will take 
place over the coming months to consider the conclusions and 
recommendations within the reports.

Complete the review of the CCTV system and implement the 
agreed recommendations

Revised scrutiny reports are being prepared for consideration by 
Councillors. These will hopefully go through the next committee 
cycle. In the meantime, the current monitoring and maintenance 
contracts have been extended for a further 6 months. 

Meeting held with CCTV consultant and we are now agreeing the 
next phase of work to put the Councillors' preferred options into 
action. Following approval of the general approach by 
Councillors, the CCTV consultants are now preparing a further 
report to assist with implementation of the preferred options. 
We are looking to extend current contracts with service 
providers until March 2019 to allow time for implementation.

Develop a strategy for further development of affordable 
and specialist housing

A meeting was held with Your Housing in May and we are 
continuing to review options for the future of Ascent.

Work with Staffordshire County Council and other partners 
to ensure an effective partnership with central government

Links to strategic partnerships project above

P
age 45



Aim 2: Meet financial challenges and provide value for money

Aim two is performing strongly with the vast majority of measures on track and 60% performing better than last year. The off track measures 
relate to complaint handling and planned procurement activity.         

Celebrating Success:    

At the close of June 2018 the following performance indicators outstripped their targets:

 FOI requests
 Channel shift
 Repeat complaints
 IT systems and network availability

P
age 46



Corporate Priority Actions – Progress Highlights

Priority Action Status Commentary – June 
Deliver the Channel Shift Programme The final report from CGI has been received and the recommendations have been 

used to inform Phase 2. This focuses primarily on waste and recycling and enviro 
crime systems and processes.

Provide advice and support for residents 
affected by the rollout of Universal Credit 
across Staffordshire Moorlands  in 2018 in 
order to help ensure a smooth transition 
to the new system

The project action plan is on track and all actions have so far been completed 
within agreed timescales. We have been allocated considerable new burdens 
funding to assist with any costs.

Universal Credit now in full service in Staffordshire Moorlands, Customer Services 
are taking enquiries and booking appointments for assisted digital support. 
Staffordshire Moorlands Website updated to provide Universal Credit information, 
forms, links, and signposting in a central location to be accessed by customers, 
partner agencies, councillors and staff.

Continue to embed good information 
management practices through the 
ASSURED framework

Updated Data Protection Policy, Document Retention Schedule, ICT Policy and E 
Mail Guidance have been published in the ASSURED section of the staff intranet 
which also contains a link to the Data Breach Reporting form on the websites. 
Assured framework is regularly publicised via Keeping You Informed and staff are 
encouraged to report data breaches. A GDPR action plan has been put in place and 
is being implemented. Information Asset Registers are almost complete. Progress is 
monitored through the Information Governance Group. 
The online training tool is up and running and has been used to roll out the ICT use 
and information security policy and the user awareness test. A number of training 
sessions have taken place to help key staff comply with the new GDPR regulations, 
with further sessions and online training planned for later in the year.

Develop and implement a plan to identify 
new and innovative ways of generating 
income

All income generation challenge meetings have been completed, a target has been 
included as part of the new efficiency and rationalisation strategy 2017/18 – 20/21. 
Various streams:
Commercial properties- Industrial units refurbishment work completed and last 
units due to be re-let. Agent engaged for lease renewals and rent reviews, 3 lettings 
have now been completed.
Fees and charges - Car Parking income and all inflationary increases approved at 
Full Council. Cash up against efficiency target to be undertaken 2018/19. 

P
age 47



Agreement made to enter West Midlands Income Assessment Efficiency 
Partnerships. 
Advertising/Sponsorship - Procurement web form submitted to procure 
consultancy support to conduct a thorough audit of our assets and create a report 
for Councillors and exec detailing the potential revenue for each asset type, wider 
industry information and trends, as well as specific recommendations as to how 
best maximise revenue, whether managing a scheme in-house or via a third party 
supplier.
Affordable housing - Meeting held with Your Housing in May, continuing to review 
options for the future of Ascent.
Empty Homes- EPIC housing association have secured grant funding for investment 
within the Staffordshire Moorlands and SOTCC & Newcastle BC areas, it is 
important to facilitate delivery of this funding opportunity. The programme may be 
extended into High Peak with approx. 10 affordable properties being brought back 
into use during 2018-2022. Replacement for call credit empty homes being 
reviewed.

Refresh and implement the Asset 
Management Plan, including a review of 
public estate, and ensure adequate 
facilities management arrangements are 
in place

Meeting to take place re 30 yr. asset management plan. Working group established 
and new approach to be agreed. The improvement programme will be produced 
prior to the MTFP in Feb 18. 

P
age 48



Aim 3: Help create a strong economy by supporting further regeneration of towns and 
villages  

The Council has all of its Planning targets on track as at the close of Quarter One, including 100% of ‘major’ applications determined on time.          

Celebrating Success:    

At the close of June 2018 the following performance indicators outstripped their targets:

 Major, Minor and other planning applications processed on time
 Major and minor developments allowed on appeal

P
age 49



Corporate Priority Actions – Progress Highlights

Priority Action Status Commentary – June
Undertake detailed process benchmarking 
with high performing / low cost councils 
with a view to identifying value for money 
improvements for Planning application 
processing

In Staffs Moorlands our Development Control RO costs have reduced from £598k to 
£369k which places the Council 7th highest out of 19 councils regionally. 
Performance in determining planning applications is ranked 4th for majors, 5th for 
minors and 8th fastest for other applications across the region. 

We are committed to continuing to provide high performance and low cost and 
these are monitored on a monthly basis.

Implement the town deal in Biddulph in 
partnership with Biddulph Town Council

Following a report approved at the Cabinet meeting in April 2018, consultants are 
being procured to prepare two masterplans for Wharf Road and the Tunstall Road 
area. The consultants will be commissioned following the submission of the Local 
Plan to the planning inspectorate by the end of June 2018. The Town Council has 
commissioned a masterplan for the Mill triangle area.

Support the development of Cornhill and 
improved rail links

Discussions ongoing with all stakeholders including SCC, Kier, Capita and 
neighbouring land owners regarding delivery of the site

Develop and implement plans to extend 
the public market operations 

Authorisation has been given to proceed with the procurement of work to refurbish 
the indoor markets and the MTFP has allocated a budget provision of £300k for the 
project. The contractor and design team will put together a detailed project plan 
which will be communicated on receipt. The wider market improvement strategy 
has been agreed by the portfolio owner and is moving forward satisfactorily and 
Councillors have been updated.

The market on Greyhound Walk in Cheadle was successfully launched in November, 
this is going well, and as of Friday 23rd March, the footprint has been extended 
onto the car park to accommodate a further 4/5 stalls. It continues to operate 
satisfactorily. The work to the Trestle Market roof was completed as planned on 
10th May. Butter Market- we are waiting for the detailed programme and design 
works from Assets. The work is still scheduled to commence in August 18.

P
age 50



Priority Action Status Commentary – June
Develop a master plan for the Leek Mill 
Quarter

Discussions ongoing with County, Police and other public sector partners as well as 
neighbouring land owners to consider options for comprehensive development of 
wider Mill Quarter site. 

Support the development of the former 
Churnet Works site in Leek

Discussions are underway with developers to redevelop the site and include 
employment units as part of the mix.

Submit the Draft Local Plan to the 
Planning Inspector by the end of June 
2018

The Local Plan has been submitted to the Secretary of State who has appointed an 
inspector. 

A report was presented to the Cabinet in SM and the service delivery scrutiny 
committee regarding the implications of NPPF changes.

P
age 51



Aim 4: Protect and Improve the Environment

  

The Council has another clean sheet in terms of ‘on track’ performance under Aim Four, and over half of all measures have improved on last 
year.               

        

Celebrating Success:    

At the close of June 2018 the following performance indicators outstripped their targets:

 Paper consumption
 Missed bins
 Fly-tipping incidents
 Residual household waste levels and recycling rates (estimated)

P
age 52



Corporate Priority Actions – Progress Highlights

Priority Action Status Commentary – June
Successfully deliver Phases 2 and 3 of the 
transfer of services to Alliance 
Environmental Services Ltd, our new joint 
venture company, to deliver waste, 
streets and ground maintenance services 
on behalf of the Council in order to 
achieve improved performance and value 
for money outcomes.

Phase 2 completed successfully at the beginning of July. Phase 3 project board has 
been arranged for late July.

Establish a developer open space 
contributions plan

 

An Open Space Audit and Playing Pitch Strategy has been completed. In addition 
Operational Services have proposed a revised method for calculating developer 
contributions for play, open space and sport / recreation facilities. This proposed 
method is currently being considered by the Councils' appointed consultants who 
are working with the planning policy team as part of the Local Plan process. Subject 
to approval a Supplementary Planning Document (SPD) for developer contributions 
will be worked up in November 2018 using these proposed calculations and 
methods. This will provide guidance for developers on the expected contributions 
they will have to make towards play, open space and sport / recreation facility 
provision as part of local developments.

Make Improvements to the Tean Road 
Recreation ground in Cheadle

Consultation has been undertaken with the Town Council and identified the need 
for resurfacing and replacement fencing to three tennis courts, new sports fencing 
for the existing multi use games area, provision of a new concrete skate park and 
the addition of a new toddlers play area. The tender for the skate park provision 
has been issued (as combined project with Brough Park Leek) as this is being 
procured by SMDC. The specification for the remaining project elements is being 
prepared and the Town Council (as the procuring agent) will be tendering / seeking 
quotations over the coming months.  

Identify and implement an approach to 
reduce the cost of country parks

A report has been presented to Service Delivery O&S Panel recommending the 
transfer of the management of key Countryside Sites to the Staffordshire Wildlife 
Trust- this was accepted with one caveat regarding Biddulph Grange Country Park. 
Staff transfer deals will also be looked at. 
Stoke Council have agreed to the freehold transfer of their share of Wetley Moor 
Common to the Wildlife Trust. A meeting has been arranged with the Wildlife trust 

P
age 53



Priority Action Status Commentary – June
in July to proceed and will hopefully be completed in 2018.

Develop a plan to improve Brough Park 
with Heritage Lottery Fund support

Officers have met with the Heritage Lottery Fund to review the funding application 
process and potential options for Brough Park. Following changes in the HLF 
criteria, a new bid is likely to be submitted this year but with a reduced level of 
grant request and a focus on the natural heritage, improvements to the lake and 
restoring a dedicated section of the north east area of the park. Capital funding 
update/MTFP need to be re-assessed due to reduced lottery funding.
The master plan proposal is within a few weeks of completion and will be tested 
with key stakeholders before publication in July. 

Reduce the Council’s energy consumption 
and associated costs (through the Asset 
Management Plan)

Working group established and new approach to be set up. The improvement 
programme will be produced prior to the MTFP in Feb 18. Work has been carried 
out and a report is due to be presented.

P
age 54



P
age 55



P
age 56



Areas for Improvement: June 2018 

Measure of Success (PI) Aim / Objective Service Lead Target 
2018/19

Result 
June 2018  

Service Manager Commentary (reasons for 
performance / SMART actions to improve)

Housing Benefits Processing: 
Time taken to process new 

claims 

18 days 22.29 days

Housing Benefits Processing: 
Time taken to process 

changes of circumstance

7 days 11.48 days

The current performance is comparable to last 
year.  Increased workloads and issues with the 
portal have added time to processing.

NEW: Homelessness: % of 
cases prevented

Aim 1: Increased supply of 
good quality affordable 

homes

Head of Customer 
Services

65% 24.69% Changes to process due to the new Act mean we 
will need to review how cases are reported. 20 
cases prevented from 81 homeless presentations to 
date but the new 56-day deadline has not yet been 
reached for many of these presentations.

Level of external funding 
awarded to support the 

physical activity and sport 
strategy (include number of 
bids submitted and number 

won)

Aim 1: 
Provision of sports 

facilities and leisure 
opportunities focused 
upon improving health 

Head of Operational 
Services

33% 
success 

rate. 
Minimum 

£50k

None 2 funding applications are currently being 
submitted: Sport England for a skate park and 
Derbyshire Environmental Trust for other play 
facilities. Further applications will be made to 
support physical activity programmes in priority 
areas (Leek North, Biddulph East etc.)

Complaint handling: % dealt 
with within 10 working days

Aim 2: Easily available 
services provided right first 

time

Head of Customer 
Services

97% 95% Number of complaints reduced compared to this 
time last year. A reminder to managers to respond 
within the agreed number of days. 

P
age 57



Measure of Success (PI) Aim / Objective Service Lead Target 
2018/19

Result 
June 2018  

Service Manager Commentary (reasons for 
performance / SMART actions to improve)

% of invoices paid in line 
with terms of contract

Aim 2: Effective use of 
financial and other 

resources to ensure value 
for money

Finance and 
Procurement 

Manager

95% 95% We have had a number of issues with a Supplier 
quoting historic Purchase Order numbers on 
invoices which were still active on the system and 
therefore not rejected; the service area had raised 
new replacement POs and not closed down the 
historic ones. The circumstances for this were out 
of the control of creditors and if the supplier had 
conformed to the new PO then this PI would have 
achieved target for Q1.

Additional info:  out of 1,119 invoices 860 have 
been paid within 10 days Q1 (77% of the Q1 
outturn).

Alliance Measures

% of Procurement activity 
on forward plan (Joint 

Alliance measure)

Aim 2: Effective use of 
financial and other 

resources to ensure value 
for money

Finance and 
Procurement 

Manager

72% 51% During Q1 there have been a large amount of Single 
Source awards and smaller value quotations made 
for Supplies and Services which were not originally 
identified in the Pre-Q1 consultations with Service 
Areas. Some of these are reactive and could not 
have been foreseen or planned however there is 
still activity that fits into lower value thresholds 
which previously would not have been reported on, 
values £2-5K.  Q2 consultations with Service 
Managers are underway to incorporate any activity 
that may not have previously been identified to 
Procurement.

For a full list of all performance measures and the Q1 results please visit the Performance Management page on the Intranet or click on this link. 
http://hpbc.alliance-online.org/transformation/performance-management  

P
age 58

http://hpbc.alliance-online.org/transformation/performance-management

	Agenda
	2 Minutes of the previous meeting (previously circulated)
	8.1 Forward Plan
	8.2 First Quarter Financial, Procurement and Performance Review 2018/19
	Appendix A
	Appendix B
	Appendix C


